
Licensing 
Committee
Agenda

Wednesday, 21st September, 2016
at 10.00 am

in the

Committee Suite
King’s Court
Chapel Street
King’s Lynn
PE30 1EX

For premises: Hanse House, South Quay, King’s Lynn, PE30 5GN



If you require parts of this document in another  language, large print, audio, Braille or any alternative 

format please contact the Council Information Centre on 01553 616200 and we will do our best to 

help.

LATVIAN
Ja Jums nepieciešamas daļas no šī dokumenta citā valodā, lielā drukā, audio, Braila rakstā vai 

alternatīvā formātā, lūdzu, sazinieties ar Padomes informācijas centru (Council Information Centre) pa 

01553 616200 un mēs centīsimies Jums palīdzēt.

RUSSIAN
Если вам нужны части этого документа на другом языке, крупным шрифтом, шрифтом Брайля, 

в аудио- или ином формате, обращайтесь в Информационный Центр Совета по тел.: 01553 

616200, и мы постараемся вам помочь.

LITHUANIAN
Jei pageidaujate tam tikros šio dokumento dalies kita kalba, dideliu šriftu, Brailio raštu, kitu formatu ar 

norite užsisakyti garso įrašą, susisiekite su Savivaldybės informacijos centru (Council Information 

Centre) telefonu 01553 616200 ir mes pasistengsime jums kiek įmanoma padėti.

POLISH
Jeśli pragną Państwo otrzymać fragmenty niniejszego dokumentu w innym języku, w dużym druku, w 

formie nagrania audio, alfabetem Braille’a lub w jakimkolwiek innym alternatywnym formacie, prosimy 

o kontakt z Centrum Informacji Rady pod numerem 01553 616200, zaś my zrobimy, co możemy, by 

Państwu pomóc.

PORTUGUESE
Se necessitar de partes deste documento em outro idioma, impressão grande, áudio, Braille ou 

qualquer outro formato alternativo, por favor contacte o Centro de Informações do Município pelo 

01553 616200, e faremos o nosso melhor para ajudar.



King’s Court, Chapel Street, King’s Lynn, Norfolk, PE30 1EX
Telephone: 01553 616200
Fax: 01553 691663

13th September 2016

Dear Member

Licensing Committee

You are invited to attend a meeting of the above-mentioned Panel which will be held 
on Wednesday, 21st September, 2016 at 10.00 am in the Committee Suite, 
King's Court, Chapel Street, King's Lynn to discuss the business shown below.

Yours sincerely 

Chief Executive

AGENDA

1.  Apologies for absence  

To receive any apologies for absence.

2.  Items of Urgent Business  

To determine any other items of business which the Chairman decides should 
be considered as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the 
Local Government Act 1972.

3.  Declarations of Interests  

Please indicate if there are any interests which should be declared.  A 
declaration of an interest should indicate the nature of the interest (if not 
already declared on the Register of Interests) and the agenda item to which it 
relates.  If a disclosable pecuniary interest is declared, the member should 
withdraw from the room whilst the matter is discussed.

4.  To consider a review application for Hanse House, South Quay, King's 
Lynn, PE30 5GN  



a)  Procedure which will be followed at the Hearing (Pages 5 - 8)

b)  Report of the Licensing Manager (Pages 9 - 53)

To:

Licensing Committee:Councillors Mrs S Buck, C J Crofts and M Hopkins

Officers:

John Gilbraith, Licensing Manager



Procedure for Determining Licensing Act 2003 Cases 
 
The hearings will be held in public.  The hearing is not adversarial but an examination of the 
facts by the Members of the Committee.  All participants must be courteous at all  times. All 
parties will be given equal maximum time i.e. normally 15 minutes each, in total.   Any person 
may apply for longer time if they immediately notify the licensing authority  upon receipt of the 
Notice of the Hearing and in exceptional circumstances, the licensing authority may extend the 
maximum time allowed to all parties if the complexity of the application demands. In the event 
that there are a large number of objections to a particular application, the licensing authority 
may ask an appropriate number of representatives or a single representative to put forward 
their views.  
 

Introductions 
 

1. The Chairman of the Committee should read out a statement declaring under which 
 capacity the Committee is sitting. 
 

This Committee is sitting to consider a matter under the Licensing Act 2003. 

2. The Chairman will introduce himself and the Members of the Committee. 

3. The Chairman will then introduce and explain the respective roles of 

(i) the Democratic Services Officer 

(ii)  the Officer representing the Licensing Authority (i.e. Licensing Manager) 

(iii)  the Legal Advisor to the Committee 

4. The Chairman should invite all those present to introduce themselves and ask them to 
indicate if they wish to speak during the hearing. 

5. Each party will be asked by the Chairman whether 15 minutes is sufficient for the 
presentation of his/her/body’s case. (Agreement on the length of time given for each 
speaker is at the discretion on the Chairman). 

 
The Application for Review of a Premises License 

 
6. The Legal Advisor explains the procedure that will be followed at the hearing. 
 
7. The Officer representing the Licensing Authority outlines the review application to the 

Committee by presenting the report referring to any relevant extracts from the Borough 
Council’s Licensing Policy and any relevant Statutory Guidance. 

 
8. The Chairman will invite questions from all parties to clarify the content of the Licensing 

Officer’s report.  
 

The Applicant’s Case 
 

9. The Chairman then invites the Applicant or their representative to make their case. 
Witnesses may be called but each will be subject to separate questioning (see below). 
 

Questions 
 

10. Once the Applicant has presented their case, the Chairman invites questions to the 
 Applicant or his representative from  
 

(i) The Officer representing the Licensing Authority 
(ii) The respondent (or their representative) 
(iii) Responsible Authorities (or their representative) 
(iv) Other persons (or their representatives) 
(v) Members of the Committee. 
 
 

 5

Agenda Item 4a



 
11. The Chairman will invite questions to the witnesses from the  
 

(i) The Officer representing the Licensing Authority 
(ii) The respondent (or their representative) 
(iii) Responsible Authorities (or their representative) 

 (ii)  Other persons (or their representatives)  
 (iii) Members of the Committee. 
 
 Questions should be relevant to the application and repetition will be discouraged. 

 
The Respondent’s Case 

 
12. The Chairman then invites the respondent or their representative to make their case. 

Witnesses may be called but each will be subject to separate questioning (see below). 
 

Questions 
 
13. Once the respondent has presented their case, the Chairman invites questions to the 
 respondent or their representative from the  
 

(i) The Officer representing the Licensing Authority 
(ii) The applicant (or their representative) 
(iii) Responsible Authorities (or their representative) 

 (iii) Other persons (or their representatives) 
 (iv) Members of the Committee. 
 
14. The Chairman will invite questions to the witnesses from the  
 

(i) The Officer representing the Licensing Authority 
(ii) The applicant (or their representative) 
(iii) Responsible Authorities (or their representatives) 

 (iii) Other persons (or their representatives)  
 (iv) Members of the Committee. 

 
Responsible Authorities 

 
15. The Chairman then invites Responsible Authorities or their representative to make their 

case. Witnesses may be called but each will be subject to separate questioning (see 
below). 
 

Questions 
 

16. Once the Responsible Authorities have presented their case, the Chairman invites 
 questions to the them or their representative from  
 

(i) The Officer representing the Licensing Authority 
(ii) The applicant (or their representative) 
(iii) The respondent (or their representative) 
(iv) Any other Responsible Authorities (or their representative) 
(v) Other persons (or their representative) 
(vi) Members of the Committee. 

 
17. The Chairman will invite questions to the witnesses from the  
 

(i) The Officer representing the Licensing Authority 
(ii) The applicant (or their representative) 
(iii) The respondent (or their representative) 
(iv) Any other Responsible Authorities (or their representative) 

 (ii) Other persons (or their representatives)  
 (iii) Members of the Committee. 
 
 Questions should be relevant to the application and repetition will be discouraged. 

6



 
Other Persons 

 
18. Each of the other persons or their representatives wishing to address the Committee may 

do so in an order determined by the Chairman. They too must be willing to be questioned 
by other parties in the same order. Other persons may not however question each other. 
Questions should be relevant to the application and repetition will be discouraged. 

 
 This will operate as follows: 
 

 each party will present his/her/body’s case 
 each party’s witnesses (if any) will give evidence in support of the party’s case 
 firstly, each party and, secondly, their witnesses may be questioned by other parties, 
 prior to questioning by Members of the Committee. 

 
19. The Officer representing the Licensing Authority, the applicant (or their representative), 
 the respondent (or their representative) and Responsible Authorities (or their 
 representatives) will be invited to ask relevant questions of those parties (or the parties’ 
 representatives). 
  

Summing Up 
 

20. The Chairman then invites the Officer representing the Licensing Authority to sum up their 
 case. They may comment upon what has been said but no new evidence should be 
 introduced.  Each party will be allowed 5 minutes to sum up. 
 
21. The Chairman then invites the respondent (or their representative) to  sum up their case.  
 They may comment upon what has been said but no new evidence should be introduced.   
 Each party will be allowed 5 minutes to sum up. 
 
22. The Chairman then invites the Responsible Authorities (or their representatives) to sum 
 up their case.  They may comment upon what has been said but no new evidence should 
 be introduced.  Each party will be allowed 5 minutes to sum up. 
 
23. The Chairman then invites the other persons (or their representatives) to sum up their 
 case.  They may comment upon what has been said but no evidence should be 
 introduced.  Each party will be allowed 5 minutes to sum up. 
 
24. The Chairman then invites the applicant (or their representative) to sum up their case. 
 They may comment upon what has been said but no new evidence should be 
 introduced. They also will be allowed 5 minutes to sum up. 
 

 Reaching and Making a Decision 
 

25. The Chairman will ask the Council’s Legal Advisor to address the Committee on any 
outstanding matters. 

 
26. The Chairman will then thank all those who have spoken and invite the Committee to 

retire to consider the application, accompanied by the Legal Advisor and Democratic 
Services Officer (who will take no part in the decision). 

 
27. The Committee will then debate the case presented to them at the hearing and will seek to 

reach a decision and reasons for their decision. 
 
28. Once a decision has been made, the Chairman will invite the Legal Advisor to announce 
 in public any legal advice he/she has given in private. 
 
29. The Chairman will read out the decision and the reasons for the decision (unless the 
 Committee is unable to reach a determination at the conclusion of the hearing). 
 
30. The Chairman will explain that all parties will be notified of the outcome of the decision 
 and reasons for the decision in writing. 
 

7



 
 
31. If the Committee is unable to reach a decision, the Chairman will explain that all parties 
 will be notified as soon as possible (but within 5 working days) of the decision and the 
 reasons for such. 
 
 

NOTE 
A decision may be deferred to:- 
  

1. Receive further documentation referred to in the meeting 
2. Enable a site visit to take place 
3. Invite the Applicant or his representative to appear if they had not done so at the 

meeting (only once) 
 
 No further debate may be heard on further documentation or at a site visit 
 Adjournments should generally be granted if to refuse would deny applicant a fair 

hearing. 

8



 

Borough Council of King's Lynn & West Norfolk 
 

Report to Licensing Sub-Committee under the Licensing Act 2003 
 

Date of Hearing: 21st September 2016 
 
Application for Review of a Premises Licence 
-     Hanse House, South Quay, King’s Lynn, PE30 5GN 
-     Licence Holder: Mr James Kenneth Lee 
-     Premises Licence Number WNPL009493 
 

Introduction 
 

1. At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence, a ‘responsible 
authority’ or ‘other person’ may apply to the licensing authority to review the premises 
licence because of matters arising at the premises in connection with any of the four 
licensing objectives.  These four licensing objectives are: 
 

� the prevention of crime & disorder, 
� public safety, 
� the prevention of public nuisance, and 
� the protection of children from harm 

 

Current Premises Licence 
 

2. The current premises licence for Hanse House was granted on the 22nd March 
2013.  A copy of this licence is attached to this report at Appendix 1 and shows the 
times and activities authorised along with the licence conditions. 
 
The Review Application 
 

3. Ms Karen Watling has made an application to review the premises licence for 
the Hanse House under ‘the prevention of public nuisance’ licensing objective.   A 
copy of the review application and supporting evidence is attached at Appendix 2.  
 
Representation from Responsible Authorities 
Section 13(4) of the Act defines the ‘Responsible Authorities’ as the statutory bodies that must be sent 
copies of an application.   

 
4. CS&NN, as a responsible authority has made a representation in support of 
the review application.  A copy of their letter dated 30th August 2016 is attached at 
Appendix 3. 
 
5. There are no representations from the remaining responsible authorities, 
namely: 
 

Responsible Authority Comments Received 

Norfolk Constabulary None 

Norfolk Fire Service None 

Norfolk Trading Standards None 

Norfolk Safeguarding Children’s Board None 

9

Agenda Item 4b



 

Responsible Authority Comments Received 

Public Health None 

Planning (BCKLWN) None 

Health & Safety (BCKLWN) None 

Licensing Authority (BCKLWN) None 

 
Representations from ‘Other Persons’ 
As well as responsible authorities, any other person can play a role in a number of licensing processes 
under the 2003 Act. This Includes any individual, body or business that are entitled to make 
representations to applications.  Representations made must relate to the licensing objectives.    

 
6. There are six representations from ‘other persons’ in support of the review 
application to consider.  Copies of these representations are attached to this report at 
Appendix 4. 
 
Notices 
 

7. The Borough Council is responsible for advertising a review application by 
way of a notice in a specified form at the premises and on the Borough Council’s 
website.  This notice has to be displayed for 28 consecutive days and should have 
been displayed on the premises between the 2nd and 30th August 2016.  A copy of 
the notice was also displayed at the Council offices for the same period.   
 
Plans 
 

8. A location map is attached at Appendix 5 showing the general location of 
Hanse House and other persons making representations.   
 
Borough Council of King’s Lynn & West Norfolk’s Licensing Policy 
 

9. The current Statement of Licensing Policy was approved by full Council on the 
26th November 2015 and the following extracts may be relevant to this application: 
 

3.0      Fundamental principles 
3.1 The 2003 Act requires that the Council carries out its various licensing 
 functions so as to promote the following four licensing objectives: 
 

(a) the prevention of crime and disorder, 
(b) public safety, 
(c) the prevention of public nuisance, and 
(d) the protection of children from harm. 

 

3.2 Nothing in this ‘Statement of Policy’ will: 
 

(a) undermine the right of any individual to apply under the terms of 
the 2003 Act for a variety of permissions and to have any such 
application considered on its own merits; 

(b) override the right of any person to make representations or to 
seek a review of a licence. 

 
 
 

10



 

7.0 Review Process 
7.1 The review process represents a key protection for the community 

where problems associated with the licensing objectives are occurring 
after the grant or variation of a premises licence.  At any stage, 
following the grant of a premises licence, a responsible authority, or an 
interested party, may ask the licensing authority to review the licence 
because of a matter arising at the premises in connection with any of 
the four licensing objectives.  

 

7.3 In every case, the representation must relate to particular premises for 
which a premises licence is in existence and must be relevant to the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. After a licence or certificate has 
been granted or varied, a complaint relating to a general (crime and 
disorder) situation in a town centre should generally not be regarded as 
a relevant representation unless it can be positively tied or linked by a 
causal connection to particular premises, which would allow for a 
proper review of the licence or certificate. For instance, a geographic 
cluster of complaints, including along transport routes related to an 
individual public house and its closing time could give grounds for a 
review of an existing licence as well as direct incidents of crime and 
disorder around a particular public house.  

 

7.4 The Borough Council recognises that the promotion of the licensing 
objectives relies heavily on a partnership between licence holders, 
authorised persons, interested parties and responsible authorities in 
pursuit of common aims. It is therefore equally important that reviews 
are not used to drive a wedge between these groups in a way that 
would undermine the benefits of co-operation. It is good practice for 
authorised persons and responsible authorities to give licence holder’s 
early warning of their concerns about problems identified at the 
premises concerned and of the need for improvement. A failure to 
respond to such warnings is expected to lead to a decision to request a 
review.  

 

7.5 Where the request originates from other persons – e.g. a local resident, 
residents’ association, local business or trade association – the 
Borough Council will first consider whether the complaint made is 
relevant, vexatious, frivolous or repetitious.  

 
Guidance Issued Under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 
Under Section 4 of the Act, Licensing Authorities must have regard to guidance issued under Section 
182.  The current Guidance was issued by the Home Office in March 2015 and offers advice to 
Licensing authorities on the discharge of their functions under the Act.   

 
10. The following extracts may be relevant to this application and assist the 
Licensing Sub-Committee: 
 

  Licence Conditions – General Principles 
1.16  Conditions on a premises licence or club premises certificate are 

important in setting the parameters within which premises can lawfully 
operate. The use of wording such as “must”, “shall” and “will”, is 
encouraged. Licence conditions: 

• must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives; 

11



 

• must be precise and enforceable; 

• must be unambiguous and clear in what they intend to achieve; 

• should not duplicate other statutory requirements or other duties or 
responsibilities placed on the employer by other legislation; 

• must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of 
the premises and events concerned; 

• should not be standardised and may be unlawful when it cannot be 
demonstrated that they are appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives in an individual case; 

• should not replicate offences set out in the 2003 Act or other 
legislation; 

• should be proportionate, justifiable and be capable of being met, (for 
example, whilst beer glasses may be available in toughened glass, 
wine glasses may not);  

• cannot seek to manage the behaviour of customers once they are 
beyond the direct management of the licence holder and their staff, 
but may impact on the behaviour of customers in the immediate 
vicinity of the premises or as they enter or leave; and 

• should be written in a prescriptive format. 
   
 

Public nuisance 
2.14 The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, 

through representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance 
and what is appropriate to prevent it in terms of conditions attached to 
specific premises licences and club premises certificates. It is therefore 
important that in considering the promotion of this licensing objective, 
licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect of 
the licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and 
working (including those carrying on business) in the area around the 
premises which may be disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues 
will mainly concern noise nuisance, light pollution, noxious smells and 
litter.  

 

2.15  Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of 
legislation. It is however not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and 
retains its broad common law meaning. It may include in appropriate 
circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and 
environment of other persons living and working in the area of the 
licensed premises. Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the 
adverse effects of artificial light, dust, odour and insects or where its 
effect is prejudicial to health.  

 
2.16  Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps 

appropriate to control the levels of noise emanating from premises. This 
might be achieved by a simple measure such as ensuring that doors 
and windows are kept closed after a particular time, or persons are not 
permitted in garden areas of the premises after a certain time. More 
sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or 
rubber speaker mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises 
may be appropriate. However, conditions in relation to live or recorded 

12



 

music may not be enforceable in circumstances where the 
entertainment activity itself is not licensable (see chapter 15). Any 
conditions appropriate to promote the prevention of public nuisance 
should be tailored to the type, nature and characteristics of the specific 
premises and its licensable activities. Licensing authorities should avoid 
inappropriate or disproportionate measures that could deter events that 
are valuable to the community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for 
example, are expensive to purchase and install and are likely to be a 
considerable burden for smaller venues.  

 
2.17 As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be 

appropriate in certain circumstances where provisions in other 
legislation adequately protect those living in the area of the premises. 
But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach of licensing 
authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and 
when their powers are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware 
of the fact that other legislation may not adequately cover concerns 
raised in relevant representations and additional conditions may be 
appropriate.  

 
2.18  Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate 

conditions should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For 
example, the most sensitive period for people being disturbed by 
unreasonably loud music is at night and into the early morning when 
residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep or are 
sleeping. This is why there is still a need for a licence for performances 
of live music between 11 pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances, 
conditions relating to noise emanating from the premises may also be 
appropriate to address any disturbance anticipated as customers enter 
and leave. 

 
2.20  Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are 

matters for the personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An 
individual who engages in anti-social behaviour is accountable in their 
own right. However, it would be perfectly reasonable for a licensing 
authority to impose a condition, following relevant representations, that 
requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from the 
building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or 
that, if they wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the 
premises instead of outside, and to respect the rights of people living 
nearby to a peaceful night. 

 
The review process  
11.1  The proceedings set out in the 2003 Act for reviewing premises 

licences and club premises certificates represent a key protection for 
the community where problems associated with the licensing objectives 
occur after the grant or variation of a premises licence or club premises 
certificate.  

 

11.2 At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence or club premises 
certificate, a responsible authority, or any other person, may ask the 

13



 

licensing authority to review the licence or certificate because of a 
matter arising at the premises in connection with any of the four 
licensing objectives.  

 
11.4  In addition, the licensing authority must review a licence if the premises 

to which it relates was made the subject of a closure order by the police 
based on nuisance or disorder and the magistrates’ court has sent the 
authority the relevant notice of its determination, or if the police have 
made an application for summary review on the basis that premises are 
associated with serious crime and/or disorder. 

 
11.7  In every case, any application for a review must relate to particular 

premises in respect of which there is a premises licence or club 
premises certificate and must be relevant to the promotion of one or 
more of the licensing objectives. Following the grant or variation of a 
licence or certificate, a complaint regarding a general issue in the local 
area relating to the licensing objectives, such as a general (crime and 
disorder) situation in a town centre, should generally not be regarded 
as a relevant representation unless it can be positively tied or linked by 
a causal connection to particular premises, which would allow for a 
proper review of the licence or certificate. For instance, a geographic 
cluster of complaints, including along transport routes related to an 
individual public house and its closing time, could give grounds for a 
review of an existing licence as well as direct incidents of crime and 
disorder around a particular public house. 

 
11.9  Representations must be made in writing and may be amplified at the 

subsequent hearing or may stand in their own right. Additional 
representations which do not amount to an amplification of the original 
representation may not be made at the hearing. Representations may 
be made electronically, provided the licensing authority agrees and the 
applicant submits a subsequent hard copy, unless the licensing 
authority waives this requirement. 

 
11.11  If the application for a review has been made by a person other than a 

responsible authority (for example, a local resident, residents’ 
association, local business or trade association), before taking action 
the licensing authority must first consider whether the complaint being 
made is relevant, frivolous, vexatious or repetitious. Further guidance 
on determining whether a representation is frivolous or vexatious can 
be found in Chapter 9 of this Guidance (paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10). 

 
Powers of a licensing authority on the determination of a review  
11.16  The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority 

which it may exercise on determining a review where it considers them 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  

 
11.17  The licensing authority may decide that the review does not require it to 

take any further steps appropriate to promote the licensing objectives. 
In addition, there is nothing to prevent a licensing authority issuing an 
informal warning to the licence holder and/or to recommend 

14



 

improvement within a particular period of time. It is expected that 
licensing authorities will regard such informal warnings as an important 
mechanism for ensuring that the licensing objectives are effectively 
promoted and that warnings should be issued in writing to the licence 
holder.  

 
11.18 However, where responsible authorities such as the police or 

environmental health officers have already issued warnings requiring 
improvement – either orally or in writing – that have failed as part of 
their own stepped approach to address concerns, licensing authorities 
should not merely repeat that approach and should take this into 
account when considering what further action is appropriate.  

 
11.19  Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory 

powers is appropriate, it may take any of the following steps:  

• modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes 

adding new conditions or any alteration or omission of an existing 

condition), for example, by reducing the hours of opening or by 

requiring door supervisors at particular times; 

• exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for 

example, to exclude the performance of live music or playing of 

recorded music (where it is not within the incidental live and 

recorded music exemption); 

• remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because 

they consider that the problems are the result of poor management; 

• suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 

• revoke the licence. 

 
11.20 In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that 

licensing authorities should so far as possible seek to establish the 
cause or causes of the concerns that the representations identify. The 
remedial action taken should generally be directed at these causes and 
should always be no more than an appropriate and proportionate 
response to address the causes of concern that instigated the review. 

 
11.21 For example, licensing authorities should be alive to the possibility that 

the removal and replacement of the designated premises supervisor 
may be sufficient to remedy a problem where the cause of the identified 
problem directly relates to poor management decisions made by that 
individual. 

 
11.22 Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct reflection of 

poor company practice or policy and the mere removal of the 
designated premises supervisor may be an inadequate response to the 
problems presented. Indeed, where subsequent review hearings are 
generated by representations, it should be rare merely to remove a 
succession of designated premises supervisors as this would be a clear 
indication of deeper problems that impact upon the licensing objectives. 

 

15



 

11.23 Licensing authorities should also note that modifications of conditions 
and exclusions of licensable activities may be imposed either 
permanently or for a temporary period of up to three months. 
Temporary changes or suspension of the licence for up to three months 
could impact on the business holding the licence financially and would 
only be expected to be pursued as an appropriate means of promoting 
the licensing objectives. So, for instance, a licence could be suspended 
for a weekend as a means of deterring the holder from allowing the 
problems that gave rise to the review to happen again. However, it will 
always be important that any detrimental financial impact that may 
result from a licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and 
proportionate to the promotion of the licensing objectives. But where 
premises are found to be trading irresponsibly, the licensing authority 
should not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take tough action to 
tackle the problems at the premises and, where other measures are 
deemed insufficient, to revoke the licence. 

 
 Regulated Entertainment 

15.6  As a result of deregulatory changes that have amended the 2003 Act, 
no licence is required for the following activities:  

• Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 

23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.  

• Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 

23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.  

• Live music: no licence permission is required for a performance of 

unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any 

premises. 

• a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on 

any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on 

those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 

• Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for any playing of 

recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises 

authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises, 

provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 

 
Live music  
15.26  Live music is licensable: 

• where a performance of live music – whether amplified or 

unamplified – takes place before 08.00 or after 23.00 on any day; 

• where a performance of amplified live music does not take place 

either on relevant licensed premises, or at a workplace that is not 

licensed other than for the provision of late night refreshment; 

• where a performance of amplified live music takes place at a time 

when the relevant licensed premises are not open for the purposes 

of being used for the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on 

the premises; 

16



 

• where a performance of amplified live music takes place at relevant 

licensed premises, or workplaces, in the presence of an audience of 

more than 500 people; or 

• where a licensing authority intentionally removes the effect of the 

deregulation provided for by the 2003 Act when imposing a 

condition on a premises licence or club premises certificate as a 

result of a licence review. 

 
 Key terms used in relation to live music 

15.30 Under the live music provisions, “music” includes vocal or instrumental 
music or any combination of the two. “Live music” is a performance of 
live music in the presence of an audience which it is intended to 
entertain. While a performance of live music can include the playing of 
some recorded music, ‘live’ music requires that the performance does 
not consist entirely of the playing of recorded music without any 
additional (substantial and continual) creative contribution being made. 
So, for example, a drum machine or backing track being used to 
accompany a vocalist or a band would be part of the performance of 
amplified live music. The performance of a DJ who is merely playing 
tracks would not be classified as live music, but it might if he or she was 
performing a set which largely consisted of mixing recorded music in a 
live performance to create new sounds. There will inevitably be a 
degree of judgement as to whether a performance is live music (or 
recorded music) and organisers of events should check with their 
licensing authority if this consideration is relevant to whether the activity 
is authorised by a licence or certificate. In the event of a dispute about 
whether a performance is live music or not, it will be for the licensing 
authority initially and ultimately, for the courts to decide in the individual 
circumstances of any case. 

 
15.32 A “relevant licensed premises” for the purposes of this chapter is one 

which is authorised to sell or supply alcohol for consumption on the 
premises by a premises licence or club premises certificate. Premises 
cannot benefit from the deregulation introduced by the 2012 Act by 
virtue of holding an authorisation for the sale or supply of alcohol under 
a TEN. 

 
Recorded music  
15.33 No licence is required for recorded music where it takes place on 

premises which are authorised by a premises licence or club premises 
certificate to be used for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the 
premises. However, recorded music remains licensable:  

• where the playing of recorded music takes places before 08.00 or 

after 23.00 on any day;  

• where the playing of recorded music takes place at a time when the 

relevant licensed premises are not open for the purposes of being 

used for the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the 

premises;  

17



 

• where the playing of recorded music takes place at relevant 

licensed premises in the presence of an audience of more than 500 

people; and  

• where a licensing authority intentionally removes the effect of the 

deregulation provided for by the 2003 Act (as amended).  

 
Plays and dance  
15.34 No licence is required for a performance of a play or dance to the 

extent that certain qualifying conditions are satisfied. However a 
performance of a play or dance remains licensable:  

• where the performance takes places before 08.00 or after 23.00 on 

any day; or  

• where the performance takes place in the presence of an audience 

of more than 500 people.  

 
Licence conditions - Live Music or recorded music 
15.36 Any existing licence conditions (or conditions added on a determination 

of an application for a premises licence or club premises certificate) 
which relate to live music or recorded music remain in place, but are 
suspended between the hours of 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day 
where the following conditions are met: 

• at the time of the music entertainment, the premises are open for 

the purposes of being used for the sale or supply of alcohol for 

consumption on the premises; 

• if the music is amplified, it takes place before an audience of no 

more than 500 people; and 

• the music takes place between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day. 

 
15.37 Whether a licence condition relates to live or recorded music will be a 

matter of fact in each case. In some instances, it will be obvious that a 
condition relates to music and will be suspended, for example “during 
performances of live music all doors and windows must remain closed”. 
In other instances, it might not be so obvious: for example, a condition 
stating “during performances of regulated entertainment all doors and 
windows must remain closed” would be suspended insofar as it relates 
to music between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day to an audience of 
up to 500, but the condition would continue to apply if there was 
regulated entertainment after 23.00.  

 
15.38 More general licence conditions (e.g. those relating to overall 

management of potential noise nuisance) that are not specifically 
related to the provision of entertainment (e.g. signage asking patrons to 
leave quietly) will continue to have effect. 

 
15.39 Chapter 9 of this Guidance sets out how a licensing authority must 

determine applications for a new licence or to vary an existing premises 
licence. Licence conditions imposed, in accordance with paragraphs 
9.41 to 9.43, for live or recorded music activities will only apply if the 

18



 

activity meets the criteria of having more than 500 people present, 
and/or the activities are taking place between 23.00 and 08.00.  

 
15.40 These conditions will, in effect, be suspended between 08.00 and 23.00 

if a performance of live music or the playing of recorded music takes 
place before an audience of 500 people or fewer, but will remain on the 
face of the licence for when these activities may take place under other 
circumstances. 

 
15.41 Where a performance of live music or the playing of recorded music on 

relevant licensed premises is not licensable, it remains possible for 
anyone to apply for a review of a licence or certificate, if there are 
appropriate grounds to do so. 

 
Conditions relating to other non-licensable activities  
15.52 If appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and if there 

is a link to remaining licensable activities, conditions that relate to non-
licensable activities can be added to or altered on that premises licence 
or club premises certificate at review following problems occurring at 
the premises. This has been a feature of licence conditions since the 
2003 Act came into force. A relevant example could be the use of 
conditions relating to large screen broadcasts of certain sporting events 
which, combined with alcohol consumption, could create a genuine risk 
to the promotion of the licensing objectives. It is also not uncommon for 
licence conditions relating to the sale of alcohol to restrict access to 
outside areas, such as unlicensed beer gardens, after a certain time. 

 
15.53 Similarly, while karaoke no longer needs licensing as the provision of 

entertainment facilities68 (and will generally be classed as a 
performance of live music69) it might, for example, be possible on 
review to limit the use or volume of a microphone made available for 
customers on an ‘open-mic’ night (which encompasses more than just 
live music), if a problem had occurred because of customers 
purchasing alcohol for consumption on the premises becoming louder 
and less aware of causing noise nuisance later in the evening. Another 
example might be a condition restricting access to a dance floor at 
certain times, where the presence of customers in close proximity who 
had been consuming alcohol on the premises had led to serious 
disorder. In the first instance it is for the licensing authority to satisfy 
itself that a particular condition is appropriate and lawful in each case.  

 
Removing licence conditions  
15.54 A licence holder who wishes to remove conditions relating to activities 

that are no longer licensable may apply to the licensing authority for a 
licence variation. In the course of considering such applications, 
licensing authorities should remove such conditions unless there are 
sufficiently serious and specific concerns about the effects of hosting 
deregulated entertainment activities along with the remaining licensable 
activities taking place in the premises.  

 
 

19



 

Licence reviews: Live and recorded music  
15.55 On a review of a premises licence or club premises certificate, section 

177A(3) of the 2003 Act permits a licensing authority to lift the 
suspension and give renewed effect to an existing condition relating to 
music. Similarly, under section 177A(4), a licensing authority may add a 
condition relating to music as if music were regulated entertainment, 
and as if that premises licence or club premises certificate licensed the 
music. In both instances the condition should include a statement that 
Section 177A does not apply to the condition.  

 
15.56 An application for a review in relation to relevant premises can be made 

by a licensing authority, any responsible authority or any other person. 
Applications for review must still be relevant to one or more of the 
licensing objectives and meet a number of further requirements. 

 
  Hearings 

9.36 As a matter of practice, licensing authorities should seek to focus the 
hearing on the steps considered appropriate to promote the particular 
licensing objective or objectives that have given rise to the specific 
representation and avoid straying into undisputed areas. A responsible 
authority or other person may choose to rely on their written 
representation. They may not add further representations to those 
disclosed to the applicant prior to the hearing, but they may expand on 
their existing representation.  

 

9.38 The licensing authority should give its decision within five working days 
of the conclusion of the hearing (or immediately in certain specified 
cases) and provide reasons to support it. This will be important if there 
is an appeal by any of the parties. Notification of a decision must be 
accompanied by information on the right of the party to appeal. After 
considering all the relevant issues, the licensing authority may grant the 
application subject to such conditions that are consistent with the 
operating schedule. Any conditions imposed must be appropriate for 
the promotion of the licensing objectives; there is no power for the 
licensing authority to attach a condition that is merely aspirational. For 
example, conditions may not be attached which relate solely to the 
health of customers rather than their direct physical safety. 

 
 

Determination 
 

11. Having regard to the review application, the Licensing Sub-Committee are 
requested to consider this report and any submissions submitted by the licence 
holder and those making representations and take such steps as it considers 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. These steps are: 
 

(a) To do nothing; 
(b) To modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding 

new conditions or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for 
example, by reducing the hours of opening or by requiring door 
supervisors at particular times.  This could also include lifted the 
suspension of conditions by virtue of the Live Music Act; 

20



 

(c) To exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for 
example, to exclude the sale of alcohol or provision of late night 
refreshment; 

(d) To remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because 
they consider that the problems are the result of poor management; 

(e) To suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 
(f) To revoke the licence. 

 
Under Section 52(6) of the Licensing Act 2003 if the Sub-Committee takes a step 
mentioned in paragraph 11(b) of 11(c) above it may provide that the modification or 
exclusion is to have effect for only such a period (not exceeding three months) as it 
may specify. 
 
12. The Sub-Committee are reminded that full reasons for its decision must be 
given as all parties have a right of appeal against that decision to the Magistrates’ 
Court.  Such an appeal must be made within 21-days beginning with the day on 
which the parties are notified by the Borough Council of the decision which is being 
appealed. 
 
 
 
 
John Gilbraith 
Licensing Manager 
Environmental Health - Licensing 
9th September 2016 
 

Appendixes: 
1. Copy of Current Premises Licence. 
2. Copy of Review Application dated 29th July 2016. 
3. CS&NN letter dated 30th August 2016. 
4. Representations from ‘other persons’. 
5. Location Plan. 
 
 

Background Papers: 
1. The Licensing Act 2003 
2. Borough Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy (26 November 2016) 
3. Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (March 2015) 

21



 

 Page 1 of 4  WNPL009493 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Part 1 – Premises Details 
 

Hanse House 
South Quay 
King's Lynn 
Norfolk 
PE30 5GN 

Telephone Number:  

  

Where the Licence is time limited the 
dates: 

Not applicable 

Licensable Activities authorised by the licence:  

 

•   the sale of alcohol by retail; 

•   The provision of regulated entertainment; and 

•   The provision of late night refreshment. 
 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities: 
 

Regulated Entertainment 

Live Music (Indoors and Outdoors)    

Sunday to Thursday: 

Friday and Saturday:    

New Year's Eve: 
 

Recorded Music (Indoors and Outdoors)   

Sunday to Thursday: 

Friday and Saturday:    

New Year's Eve: 
 

Performance of a Play (Indoors and Outdoors) 

Monday to Sunday: 
 

Performance of Dance (indoors and Outdoors) 

Monday to Sunday: 
 

An Exhibition of a Film (indoors and Outdoors) 

Monday to Sunday: 

 

From  To 

10:00 - 23:00 

10:00 - 00:00 

10:00 - 02:00 
 

 

10:00 - 23:00 

10:00 - 00:00 

10:00 - 02:00 
 

 

10:00 - 23:00 
 

 

10:00 - 23:00 
 

 

10:00 - 23:00 

LICENSING ACT 2003

PREMISES LICENCE
LICENSING AUTHORITY

Environmental Health – Licensing
Kings Court

Chapel Street
Kings Lynn

Norfolk
PE30 1EX

Tel: 01553 616200
Fax: 01553 691663

Web: www.west-norfolk.gov.uk
Email: ehlicensing@west-norfolk.gov.uk

 

 WNPL009493

 

22

jgilbraith
Text Box
Appendix 1 to
Report to Licensing Sub-Committee
Re: Hanse House, King's Lynn
Dated 9th September 2016



 

 Page 2 of 4  WNPL009493 

 

 

 

The Sale of Alcohol by Retail 

Monday to Thursday:    

Friday to Sunday:      

New Year's Eve: 

From  To 

10:00 - 00:00 

10:00 - 01:00 

10:00 - 02:00 
 

Provision of late night refreshment (Indoors) 

Monday to Thursday: 

Friday to Sunday: 

New Year's Eve:     
 

From  To 

23:00 - 00:00 

23:00 - 01:00 

23:00 - 02:00 

 

 

Monday to Thursday: 
Friday to Sunday: 
New Year’s Eve: 

 

 

09:00 - 01:30 
09:00 - 00:30 
09:00 – 02:30 
 

 

 

Alcohol is supplied for consumption both ON and OFF the Premises 
 

Part 2 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises licence: 
 

Mr James Kenneth Lee 
Woodpecker House, 10 Whin Common Road, Tottenhill, Norfolk, PE33 0RS 
 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable) 
 

n/a 
 

Name address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises 
the supply of alcohol: 

Mr James Kenneth Lee 
Woodpecker House 
10 Whin Common Road 
Tottenhill 
Norfolk 
PE33 0RS 
 

Personal Licence number and issuing authority of Personal Licence held by Designated Premises Supervisor 
(where the premises authorises for the supply of alcohol): 

Personal licence Number: 
Licensing Authority: 

 
Licence Number: WNPA010220 

Licensing Authority: Kings Lynn And West Norfolk 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Environmental Health Manger (Commercial) 
 

Original Issue date of Premises Licence: 25th March 2013 

Date of last change: 10th February 2016 

The opening hours of the premises: 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and /or off supplies: 

23

jgilbraith_1
Text Box

jgilbraith_2
Text Box



 

 Page 3 of 4  WNPL009493 

 

 

 

 
 

ANNEX 1 – MANDATORY CONDITIONS 
 

1.   Under Section 19(2) of the Licensing Act 2003, no supply of alcohol shall be made under this premises licence at a 

time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, or at a time when the 

designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his personal licence is suspended. 
 

2.   Under Section 19(3) of the Licensing Act 2003 every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made 

or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.  
 

3.  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in any 

irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or 

more of the following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or 

supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises: 
 

a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or encourage, individuals to 

drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises 

before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 
 

b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public or 

to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a 

licensing objective; 
 

c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase and 

consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of 

undermining a licensing objective; 
 

d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the 

premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to 

refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 
 

e)  dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person is 

unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability). 
 

4.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers where it is 

reasonably available. 
 

5.  The premises licence holder must ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in 

relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.  The 

policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as 

may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 

photograph, date of birth and either a holographic mark, or an ultraviolet feature. 
 

6.  The responsible person must ensure that where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for 

consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for 

sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures: 
 

   (a)  beer or cider: ½ pint; 

   (b)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35ml; and 

   (c)  still wine in a glass: 125ml; 
 

These measures must be displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to customers on the 

premises and if a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the 

customer is made aware that these measures are available.  
 

7.  A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the premises for a price 

which is less than the permitted price.  For the purposes of this condition 'duty' is to be construed in accordance with 

the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979; 'permitted price' is the price found by applying the formula - P = D + (D x V) 

ANNEXES 

24



 

 Page 4 of 4  WNPL009493 

 

 

 

where; P is the permitted price; D is the rate of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on 

the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; and V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as 

if the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol.  A 'relevant person' means the 

holder of the premises licence, the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or the personal 

licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence.  'Valued added tax' means value 

added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994.   
 

The permitted price must be rounded up to the nearest penny. 
 

A change to the permitted price which would apply as a result of a change to the rate of duty or VAT charged in relation 

to alcohol would not apply until the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the day on which the change in the 

rate of duty or VAT takes effect. 
 

8.   The admission of children to film exhibitions is to be restricted in accordance with the recommendations of the 

British Board of Film Classification (BBFC) or the Borough Council of King's Lynn & West Norfolk. 

 
ANNEX 2 – CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE 
 

9.   The sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises shall only be made to persons who are attending a 

pre-arranged event. 
 

10.  No person under the age of 18 shall be admitted to the premises when there is a performance of a play, dance or 

other entertainment containing material of an adult nature. 
 

11.   Provisions for regulated entertainment outdoors in the inner court yard shall only be permitted from 1000hrs to 

2200hrs Monday to Saturdays and at no times on Sunday.  
 

12.   Within 28 days from the start date of the licence, a detailed noise management plan shall be submitted to and 

agreed by the CSNN team from the Borough Council of King’s Lynn and West Norfolk (BCKLWN). The noise 

management plan shall include an agreed noise level that shall be measured between the hours of 2300 and 2400 

hours on a Friday or Saturday night and shall be expressed as an LAeq 5min at monitoring locations agreed by the 

BCKLWN 

 
ANNEX 3 – CONDITIONS ATTACHED AFTER A HEARING 
 

13.   A prominent clear notice shall be displayed at all exits requiring customers to respect the needs of local 

residents and leave the premises and are quietly. 

 
ANNEX 4 – AUTHORISED PLANS 
 
As attached. 

 

25



26

jgilbraith_3
Text Box
Hanse House, King's Lynn, PE30 5GN



27



28

jgilbraith_4
Text Box
Appendix 2 to
Report to Licensing Sub-Committee
Re: Hanse House, King's Lynn
Dated 9th September 2016



29

jgilbraith_5
Text Box

jgilbraith_6
Text Box

jgilbraith_7
Text Box

jgilbraith_8
Text Box



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47

jgilbraith_9
Text Box

jgilbraith_10
Text Box

jgilbraith_11
Text Box

jgilbraith_12
Text Box

jgilbraith_13
Text Box



48

jgilbraith_14
Text Box
Appendix 3 to 
Report to Licensing Sub-Committee
Re: Hanse House, King's Lynn
Dated 9th September 2016



49



50



51



 

 

Appendix 4 to 

Report to Licensing Sub-Committee 

Re; Hanse House, King’s Lynn 

Dated 9th September 2016 

 

Hanse House Review – Other Persons 

 

Flag Name Address 

A   

B   

C   

D   

E   

F   

 

52



Appendix 5 to 

Report to Licensing Sub-Committee 

Re; Hanse House, King’s Lynn 

Dated 9th September 2016 

 

Location Map – Hanse House, South Quay, King’s Lynn 

 

 

Hanse House 

53


	Agenda
	4a Procedure which will be followed at the Hearing
	4b Report of the Licensing Manager



